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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

(CIN : U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Reg. Office: Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor, Karmayogi Bhawan, Gandhinagar-382010.

Board of Directors

Sr. Name & DIN of Director
No.

Designation

1. Shri Anuj Aggarwal
DIN: 06575625

Chairman &

Additional Director

2. Shri M. K. Das, IAS
DIN: 06530792

Director

3. Shri Hareet Shukla, IAS
DIN: 02858978

Managing Director

4, Shri Anil Kumar Pathak
DIN: 08213061

Additional Director

5. Shri G. Chandramouli
DIN: 06624504

Additional Director

6. Shri Hurbert W. Christian
DIN: 06852871

Director

7. Smt. V. Vidya
DIN: 08366688

Additional Director

Statutory Auditors:

M/s M AN J & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Ahmedabad

Bankers:
Corporation Bank, Udhyog Bhavan,
Gandhinagar

Registered Office:

3rd Floor, A-2 Wing,

Block No. 1, Karmayogi Bhavan,
Gandhinagar - 382010.
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

(CIN : U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
3rd Floor, A-2 Wing, Block No. 1, Karmayogi Bhawan, Gandhinagar-382010.

NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS
Notice is hereby given that the 07th Annual General Meeting of the members of
DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED wil be held on 17t
September, 2019 i.e. on Tuesday at 02:00 p.m. at the Committee Room of
Industries & Mines Department, 3 Floor, Block No. 5, New Sachivalaya,
Gandhinagar to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

Item No. 1: Adoption of Financial Statements:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement (Standalone) of the
Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019 together with the reports of
Board of Directors, Auditor and C&AG thereon.

Item No. 2: Confirmation of Interim Dividend as final dividend for F.Y. 2018-29 :
To confirm the interim Dividend of Rs. 1.30/- per equity share (@13%) of the face
value of Rs. 10/- each already paid aggregating amounting to Rs. 7,07,07,000/-
(including dividend distribution tax @ 20.56%), as the final dividend for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2019.

Item No. 3: Appointment of Auditor:

To consider & fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the Company for F.Y. 2019-20,
appointed by C&AG.

Date: 17-09-2019 By order of the Board of Directors of
Place: Gandhinagar Dholera International Airport
Company Limited (DIACL)

Registered Office:

Block No.1, A-2 Wing,

3rd Floor, Karmayogi Bhavan, Sd/-
Gandhinagar - 382010 Company Secretary

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. TO REGULARIZE APPOINTMENT OF SHRI ANUJ AGGARWAL (DIN:
06575625) AS A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Shri Anuj Aggarwal (DIN: 06575625), who was appointed as
an Additional Director on the Board of Directors (‘Board') of the Company with
effect from 17th September, 2019, pursuant to provisions of Sections 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies [Appointment and Qualification of
Directors] Rules, 2014 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force] and Articles of Association of the Company
and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation."

2
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5. TO REGULARIZE APPOINTMENT OF SHRI ANIL KUMAR PATHAK (DIN:
08213061) AS A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Shri Anil Kumar Pathak (DIN: 08213061), who was appointed
as an Additional Director on the Board of Directors ('Board’) of the Company with
effect from 25th June, 2019, pursuant to provisions of Sections 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies [Appointment and Qualification of
Directors] Rules, 2014 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force] and Articles of Association of the Company
and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation."

6. TO REGULARIZE APPOINTMENT OF SHRI G. CHANDRAMOULI (DIN:
06624504) AS A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Shri G. Chandramouli (DIN: 06624504), who was appointed
as an Additional Director on the Board of Directors ('Board’) of the Company with
effect from 25th June, 2019, pursuant to provisions of Sections 161 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies [Appointment and Qualification of
Directors] Rules, 2014 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force] and Articles of Association of the Company
and who holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is
hereby appointed as a Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation."

7. TO REGULARIZE APPOINTMENT OF SMT. V. VIDYA (DIN: 08366688) AS A
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Smt. V. Vidya (DIN: 08366688), who was appointed as an
Additional Director on the Board of Directors ('Board') of the Company with effect
from 25th June, 2019, pursuant to provisions of Sections 161 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies [Appointment and Qualification of Directors]
Rules, 2014 [including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for
the time being in force] and Articles of Association of the Company and who
holds office upto the date of this Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby
appointed as a Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation."
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NOTE:
1.

The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies
Act, 2013, in respect of Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto and
forms part of this notice.

A member entitled to attend and vote is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote
instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member of the Company. Proxies
in order to be effective must be received by the Company not later than forty eight
(48) hours before the meeting. Proxies submitted on behalf of limited Companies,
societies, etc., must be supported by appropriate resolutions, as applicable.

Members are requested to bring their attendance slips duly completed and signed
mentioning therein details,

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher
in the order of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and in the Explanatory
Statements are open for inspection by the Members at the Company's Registered
Office on all working days during business hours up to the date of the Meeting.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the
Meeting pursuant to Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send
to the Company, a certified copy of the relevant Board Resolution together with their
respective specimen signatures authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote
on their behalf at the Meeting.

Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to write
to the Company at an early date, so as the Management to keep the information
ready at the Meeting.

An explanation to above Items (1 to 7) (Annexure-A) is appended herewith as the
part of a notice.
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

ANNEXURE-A
EXPLANATION REGARDING THE ORDINARY BUSINESS

ITEM NO.1 :

TO RECEIVE, CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
(STANDALONE) OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31°T
MARCH, 2019, TOGETHER WITH THE BOARD'S REPORTS, AUDITORS AND C&AG
THEREON:

The Accounts for the period from 01/04/2018 to 31/03/2019 were audited by Statutory Auditors
M/s MANJ & Associates, Chartered Accountants, Ahmedabad and were approved by Board
of Directors at the Board meeting held on 25-06-2019 and the same were submitted to the

office of Accountant General for their Supplementary Audit.

Report of the C&AG on supplementary audit of DIACL is awaited. If the same is received
before the 31st Board Meeting (i.e. on or before 17-09-2019) the same will be placed on
table before the Board for consideration or it will be added as addendum to the Board of
Director's report at a later. However, if C&AG report is not received till the date 07th AGM,
then AGM may be adjourned.

The above Accounts are to be approved by the shareholders along with Board's Report,
Statutory Auditors’ Report & Report of C&AG. The Accounts also shall be filed with the

Registrar of Companies and to be placed before the floor of assembly.

Therefore, members are requested to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following

resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

"RESOLVED THAT the Audited Financial Statements (standalone) of the Company for the
year ended on 31st March, 2019 i.e., Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2019, Profit and Loss
Account for the period from 01-04-2018 to 31-03-2019 along with schedules there to, Significant
Accounting Policies and Notes of Accounts together with Board’s Report, Statutory Auditors
Report and Report of Comptroller and Auditor General of India, be and are hereby considered

and adopted.”
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ITEM NO. 2:
CONFIRMATION OF INTERIM DIVIDEND AS FINAL DIVIDEND FOR F.Y. 2018-19 :

As per Audited Accounts for the F.Y. 2017-18, DIACL had a Reserve and Surplus Balance
of Rs. 12,02,42,666/- as at 31-03-2018. The Company had earned Rs. 1.74 Crs as interest
on funds parked with G.S.F.S. during current year after payment of Advance Tax and other
expenses. The cash liquidity position of DIACL as on 31-12-2018 was Rs. 61.94 Crs which
was in the form of Cash in Hand, Bank Balance, GSFS Deposit and Interest receivable up
to 31-12-2018. The Company had total available cash balance of Rs. 7.55 Crs. (Rs. 61.94
Crs which was in the form of Cash in Hand, Bank Balance, GSFS Deposit and Interest
receivable up to 31-12-2018. The Company had total available cash balance of Rs. 7.55 Crs.
(Rs. 61.94 Crs - Rs. 54.39 Crs paid up capital) which can be distributed by way of interim
dividend. However, it was necessary to keep Cash/Bank Balance for payment of expenses
approx. Rs. 50 Lakhs for next six months. Thus, cash / FD balance of Rs. 7.07 Crs. can
be distributed by way of dividend.

Considering the above, Board of Directors had approved to declare & pay interim dividend
of 13% at the Rate of Rs. 1.30/- per share, on 5,43,90,000 equity shares of face value of
Rs. 10/- each aggregating to dividend amount of Rs. 7.07 Crs. This dividend will be paid
after payment of Dividend Distribution Tax (DDT) at the rate of 20.56%. Therefore, the
dividend payable to both the promoter were be as under.

Sr. | Promoter Name No. of Dividend | DDT (In Rs.) | Net Amount
No. Shares of Amount (In (In Rs.)
Rs. 10 Rs.)

each
1 | H'ble Governor of 5,00,00,000 6,50,00,000 1,33,64,000 5,16,36,000
Gujarat (Govt. of
Guijarat)
2 | CEO, National 43,90,000 57,07,000 11,73,359 45,33,641

Industrial Corridor
Development and
Implementation
Trust (NICDIT)
Total 5,43,90,000 7,07,07,000 1,45,37,359 5,61,69,641

Therefore, the members are requested to consider payment of interim dividend as final
divided for the F.Y. 2018-19 and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
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PROPOSED RESOLUTION:

"RESOLVED THAT shareholders be and are hereby confirm the declaration of interim Dividend
of Rs. 1.30 per equity share (@13%) of the face value of Rs. 10 each already paid aggregating
amounting to Rs. 7,07,07,000 (including dividend distribution tax @ 20.56%), as the final
dividedn for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019.

ITEM NO. 3:

TO CONSIDER & FIX REMUNERATION OF STATUTORY AUDITORS FOR THE YEAR
2019-2020 :

As per the Section 139(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the appointment of Statutory Auditors
of the Government Company is to be made by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
within 180 days from the commencement of the financial year. And as per Section 142(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration of Statutory Auditor has to be decided by the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

C&AG has appointed M/s. MANJ & Associates, Chartered Accountant, Ahmedabad as Statutory
Auditors of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20 vide their letter no. CA.V/COY/
GUJARAT, DIACL(0)/1318, dated 20-08-2019 with a remuneration of Rs. 10,000. The Members
are requested to take appropriate decision in this regards and if thought fit, to pass, with or
without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

PROPOSED RESOLUTION:

"RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors are hereby authorized to finalize remuneration
of the Statutory Auditors of the Company appointed by C&AG, New Delhi for the
Financial Year 2019-20."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

ITEM NO. 4:

TO REGULARIZE APPOINTMENT OF SHRI ANUJ AGGARWAL (DIN: 06575625) AS A
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

Shri Anuj Aggarwal (DIN: 06575625) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company
under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Articles of Association of the
Company with effect from 17th September, 2019. Shri Anuj Aggarwal holds office upto the
date of this Annual General Meeting.

A brief profile of Shri Anuj Aggarwal, the nature of his expertise in specific functional areas,
names of companies in which he holds Directorship etc., are separately annexed hereto.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relatives of Directors and
KMPs, except Shri Anuj Aggarwal, is concerned or interested in the Resolution at ltem No.
4 of the Notice.
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The Board recommends the Resolution for approval of the Members, Members are requested
to approve the Resolution.

ITEM NO. 5:

TO REGULARIZE APPOINTMENT OF SHRI ANIL KUMAR PATHAK (DIN: 08213061) AS
A DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

Shri Anil Kumar Pathak (DIN: 08213061) was appointed as an Additional Director of the
Company under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Articles of Association
of the Company with effect from 25th June, 2019. Shri Anil Kumar Pathak holds office upto
the date of this Annual General Meeting.

A brief profile of Shri Anil Kumar Pathak, the nature of his expertise in specific functional
areas, names of companies in which he holds Directorship etc., are separately annexed
hereto.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relatives of Directors and
KMPs, except Shri Anil Kumar Pathak, is concerned or interested in the Resolution at Item
No. 5 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Resolution for approval of the Members, Members are requested
to approve the Resolution.

ITEM NO. 6:

TO REGULARIZE APPOINTMENT OF SHRI G. CHANDRAMOULI (DIN: 06624504) AS A
DIRECTOR OF THE COMPANY.

Shri G. Chandramouli (DIN: 06624504) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company
under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Articles of Association of the
Company with effect from 25th June, 2019. Shri G. Chandramouli holds office upto the date
of this Annual General Meeting.

A brief profile of Shri G. Chandramouli, the nature of his expertise in specific functional areas,
names of companies in which he holds Directorship etc., are separately annexed hereto.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relatives of Directors and
KMPs, except Shri G. Chandramouli, is concerned or interested in the Resolution at Item No.
6 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Resolution for approval of the Members, Members are requested
to approve the Resolution.
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ITEM NO. 7:

TO REGULARIZE APPOINTMENT OF SMT. V. VIDYA (DIN: 08366688) AS A DIRECTOR
OF THE COMPANY.

Smt. V. Vidya (DIN: 08366688) was appointed as an Additional Director of the Company
under Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Articles of Association of the
Company with effect from 25th June, 2019. Smt. V. Vidya holds office upto the date of this
Annual General Meeting.

A brief profile of Smt. V. Vidya, the nature of his expertise in specific functional areas, names
of companies in which he holds Directorship etc., are separately annexed hereto.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) or relatives of Directors and
KMPs, except Smt. V. Vidya, is concerned or interested in the Resolution at Item No. 7 of
the Notice.

The Board recommends the Resolution for approval of the Members, Members are requested
to approve the Resolution.

Date: 17-09-2019 By order of the Board of Directors of

Place: Gandhinagar Dholera International Airport
Company Limited (DIACL)

Registered Office:

Block No.1, A-2 Wing,

3rd Floor, Karmayogi Bhavan, Sd/-

Gandhinagar - 382010 Company Secretary
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT / REAPPOINTMENT AS
SET OUT IN THE NOTICE :

(1) SHRI ANUJ AGGARWAL, MEMBER (HR), AAL:

Date of Birth 04-02-1963

Date of Appointment 17-09-2019

Terms of condition Shri Anuj Aggarwal has been nominated as Director by Airports
of appointment Authority of India (AAl).

Board of Directors of DIACL has appointed him as Chairman
of DIACL. He holds office of director till further intimation in
this regard by AAI.

Qualification & Shri Aggarwal is an Engineering Graduate from BITS Pilani
Expertise and also holds Advance Diploma in Management. He has
successfully completed the professional courses on "Airport
Executive Leadership Programme" jointly conducted by ACI
and the Johm Molson School of Business, Concordia
University, Canada; "Management Development Programme™
on Aviation Management conducted by IIM, Ahmedabad;
"Internation Executive Diploma Programme" Conducted by
School of Business, George Washington University, Washington
DC and "Certified Corporate Directorship™ conducted by
Institute of Directors, New Delhi.

Shri Aggarwal has put in more than 28 years of service in the
Aviation sector in different roles and has acquired vast
experience in the field of Planning, Administration, Engineering,
Operations, Corporate Social Responsibility and Human
Resources Management.

Shri Aggarwal is a team player with the ability to handle large
taskforce in a disciplined & organized manner as well as
monitoring and motivating teams in optimizing performance
levels. Shri Aggarwal is an avid nature lover and enjoys
exploring the new places.

Directorship holds in 1. MUMBAI INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
other Companies 2. DELHI INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
Shareholding of NIL

Directors

10
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(2) SHRI ANIL KUMAR PATHAK, Member (Planning), AAI:

Date of Birth 01-10-1963

Date of Appointment 25-06-2019

Terms of condition Shri Anil Kumar Pathak, has been nominated as Director by

of appointment Airports Authority of India (AAI). He holds office of director till
further intimation in this regard by AAl.

Qualification & Shri Pathak holds Master Degree in Environment Science

Expertise and Engineering. He is also certified International Airport

Professional (IAP) by ACI-ICAQO.

He is having 30 years of rich experience in planning, design
of modern state-of-art environment-friendly airport terminals and
airside infrastructure like runways, apron etc.

Directorship holds in 1. DELHI INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED

other Companies 2. AAl CARGO LOGISTICS & ALLIED SERVICES COMPANY
LIMITED

Shareholding of NIL

Directors

(3) SHRI G. CHANDRAMOULI, RED (WR), AAI:

Date of Birth 05-05-1961

Date of Appointment 25-06-2019

Terms of condition Shri G. Chandramouli, has been nominated as Director by

of appointment Airports Authority of India (AAI). He holds office of director till
further intimation in this regard by AAl.

Qualification & Shri G. Chandramouli holds degrees of B.E. in Electrical and

Expertise Electronic Engineering, PG Diploma in Business

Management, MBA in Airline / Airport Management,
International Airport Professional (IAP) by Global ACI-ICAO
Airport Management Professional Accreditation Programme
(AMPAP).

Shri G. Chandramouli has taken over charge of Regional
Executive Director, Western Region, Airports Authority of India,
Mumbai from Chennai, where he was the Airport Director,
Chennai Internation Airport. Shri G. chandramouli has started
his career in Aviation Industry/Airports Authority of India 27
years ago as an Electrical engineer at Vadodara Airport.

He has served as Airport Director, Pune, Jammu, Kozikode,
Thiruvananthapuram and Chennal Airports between 2014 &
2019. He has also served as the Managing Director of Kannur
Airport, Kerala for three years from July 2013.

Directorship holds in 1. KANNUR INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT LIMITED
other Companies

Shareholding of NIL

Directors
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(4) SMT. V. VIDYA, GM (FINANCE), AAIl:

Date of Birth

20-06-1967

Date of Appointment

25-06-2019

Terms of condition
of appointment

Smt. V. Vidya, has been nominated as Director by Airports
Authority of India (AAl). She holds office of director till further
intimation in this regard by AAl.

Qualification &
Expertise

Ms. Vidya holds a Post graduate degree in commerce from
Bangalore University and a Cost accountant degree from the
Institute of Cost and works accountants (ICWA) of India.

Ms. V. Vidya is currently heading the Tariff and Joint venture
cell of AAl and has been here since last three years. Under
the present portfolio, she is monitoring the functionning of the
Joint venture airports of AAl and responsible for submission of
the tariff proposals of AAl to the regulator.

She has experience in finance on varied areas on preparation
of financial statements, statutory audit compliances, treasury
management, liaison with banks, revenue accounting etc.

She has been a part of various working groups of ICAO and
has also submitted a working paper in the 39th Assembly at
ICAO on the non-economic viability of the airports and cross
subsidization.

Directorship holds in
other Companies

1. AAlI CARGO LIGISTICS & ALLIED SERVICES COMPNAY
LIMITED

Shareholding of
Directors

NIL
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

(CIN : U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Reg. Office: Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor, Karmayogi Bhawan, Gandhinagar-382010.

BOARD'S REPORT

To,
The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 7" Annual Report on the business and
operations of the Company and on the accounts for the Financial Year ended 315t March, 2019.

1.  FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/ PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY :

The Board's Report is prepared based on the standalone financial statements of the
Company as under:

(Amount in Rs. Lacs)

Particulars 2018-2019 2017-2018
Revenue from Operations NIL NIL
Other Income +399.65 +380.58
Total Revenue +399.65 +380.58
Expenses

Other Expenses —109.60 -56.35
Depreciation -7.19 -5.07
Finance Cost 0.00 0.00
Total Expenses -116.79 -61.42
Profit before prior period items and tax +282.86 +319.15
Prior Period Items -0.83 -2.11
Profit Before Tax +282.03 +317.04
Current Tax —79.64 —73.38
Profit / (Loss) for the Year (+/-) +202.39 +243.66
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

1)
2)

3)

S)

BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY'S WORKING DURING THE YEAR:

State Government has decided to develop an International Airport close to Dholera
Special Investment Region. The proposed Dholera Airport project would serve the
logistic requirement of Dholera SIR besides handling the spill over traffic of existing
Ahmedabad Airport in future. The proposed airport project is an early bird project
declared jointly by DIPP, DMICDC and GoG. Proposed airport location is ideally placed
to serve the other big cities of the State including Vadodara, Rajkot, Bhavnagar,
Nadiad, Kheda and Anand. It will also cater the demand of Sanand-Viramgam area
which is fast developing as an International Auto Hub. The proposed airport will propel
an Airport led economic growth in the entire region in line with other Aerotropolis
worldwide.

The brief description of the activities and work done during the year is as under:
AAl's stipulations for equity participation deliberated in various high level meetings.

Flood mitigation plan was finalized in consultation with concerned departments to
make site flood free.

Final DPR prepared by TA has been submitted to AAI. The DPR was also approved
by NITI AAYOG for equity participation by AAl. Accordingly, AAl Board in its 184th
Board meeting, has approved equity participation (51% share) in Dholera airport
project.

Govt. of Gujarat has accorded state support to the project as under;

Flood mitigation outside the airport boundary shall be the reponsibility of the State.
I&M Department may have budgetary provision for the said expense.

The exemption in local property tax shall be provided.

All basic utilities shall be provided which are as under:

* Water supply shall be provided up to the Airport premises.

* Dedicated HT stable power supply shall be provided up to the airport premises.

* 4 - Lane Road connectivity from proposed Ahmedabad-Dholera Expressway with 6
lane Row shall be provided up to the airport.

* Drainage shall be provided up to the airport premises.

Revenue Dept. vide GR dated 17-12-2018 allotted 1,426.4677 Ha of Government land
bearing the survey No. 481 (Old Survery No. 101 P1) and 75 Ha. Land of Survey No.
171 (Old Survey No. 61P1) at Token lease Rent of Rs.1.00 per annum for 30 Years
further extendable for another 30 Years to DIACL.
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6) Industries & Mines Dept. vide GR dated 04-01-2019 approved AAIl equity participation;

 The equity of the project shall be brought by AAI-GoG-NICDIT in the ratio of
51:33:16.

+ Initially, against GoG's existing equity of Rs. 50 Cr in DIACL, AAIl and NICDIT shall
bring matching contribution in the ratio of 51:33:16.

7) DIACL has taken possession of 1426.4677 Ha of Government land bearing the
survery No. 481 (Old Survey No. 101 P1) and 75 Ha. Land of Survey No. 171 (Old
Survey No. 61P1) with payment of Rs.1.00 token lease rent.

8) A kick start meeting was arranged among AAIl, IMD and State's concerned Depts.
Wherein, roles and responsibilities were assigned to all the stakeholders.

9) Share Subscription cum Share Holder Agreement (SSSHA) was signed and executed
among AAI-GoG-NICDIT-DIACL on 25-03-2019. Subsequently, AAl infused share
subscription money of Rs. 77,27,00,000 towards 51% equity stake in DIACL.

2.2 FUTURE COURSE OF ACTION & WAY FORWARD:

1. Appointment of PMC for management and implementation of the project.

2 On-site MET Data shall be obtained to ensure runway orientation.

3 Construction of small building for observatory post and on-site meetings.
4.  Assessment of WAPCOS Flood Study and detailed engineering.
5

Earmarking of land requied for the flood mitigation measures outside airport
boundary.

A topographic survey of the airport site may be undertaken.
Finalization of alignment for approach road to the airport.

Uninterrupted HT power supply up to airport premises shall be ensured.

© © N o

Sources of soil shall be identified for required land reclamation.
3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:

There is no change in nature of business of the company.
4. DIVIDEND:

The company has declared and paid an interim dividend of Rs. 1.30 per equity share
of the face value of Rs. 10 each (@ 13%) aggregating amounting to Rs. 7,07,07,000
(including dividend distribution tax @ 20.56%). Out of total interim dividend Rs.
5,16,36,000 paid to Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat and Rs. 45,33,641 paid to CEO,
National Industrial Corridor Development & Implementation Trust (NICDIT) during the
year being the shareholders of the Company.

An amount of Rs. 1,45,37,359 was paid as dividend distribution tax on the interim
dividend declared by the Board.
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5.

7.

RESERVES:

During the Financial Year, your company has earned profit of Rs. 2.02 Crores. The
entire amount of profit is shown as surplus under the head Reserve and Surplus
Account.

SHARE CAPITAL:

Authorized Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Two
Hundred Crores Only) divided into 20,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.
Issued share capital of the company is Rs. 1,51,51,00,000 (Rupees One Hundred
and Fifty One Crore Fifty One Lacs only) divided into 15,15,10,000 Equity shares
of Rs. 10 each. Subscribed capital of the company is Rs. 1,31,66,00,000 (Rupees
One Hundred and Thirty-One Crores Sixty-Six Lacs Only) divided into
13,16,60,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each & Paid up share capital of the company
is Rs. 54,39,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty-Four Crores Thirty-Nine Lacs Only) divided into
5,43,90,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each as on 31st March, 2019.

Further, Company has received fund of Rs. 77.27 Cr as a Share Subscription Money
from Airports Authority of India (AAl) on 30-03-2019 so as to take 51% equity stake
in the Company. Also Company has received a fund of Rs. 19.85 Cr. on 17-04-2019
as a Share Subscription money from National Industrial Corridor Development &
Implementation Trust (NICDIT) so as to increase its equity in the Company from
present 8.07% to 16%.

Against receipt of above share subscription money, Company has allotted 7,72,70,000
(Seven Crore Seventy Two lacs Seventy Thousand) and 1,98,50,000 (One Crore
Ninety Eight Lacs Fifty Thousand) equity shares to AAl and NICDIT on 20-04-2019.
Hence, Company's issued, subscribed and paid-up capital is Rs. 1,51,51,00,000
(Rupees One Hundred and Fifty One Crore Fifty One Lacs only) divided into
15,15,10,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 each as on date of this report.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL.:

From the 01st April, 2018 to till date of report, the changes that have been occurred
in Board of Directors as per orders of State Government from time to time is as per
ANNEXURE B.

8. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

Your company is not a Listed Company and hence provisions of section 197 (12) and
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
regarding furnishing of statement of particulars of employees is not applicable to the
Company.
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9. MEETINGS:

9.1 (i) BOARD MEETING:

During the year, 4 (four) Board Meetings were convened and held. The

details of the same is as below.

[ Sr. Number of Date of Board Meetingw
No. Board Meeting
1. 26th 21-06-2018
2 27th 27-09-2018
3. 28th 27-12-2018
L 4 29th 25-03-2019 |

9.1 (ii) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

The Annual General Meeting of the Company was called and Convened on

27th

September, 2018.

9.1 (iii) EXTRA ORDINARY GENERAL MEETING:

During the year, 1 (one) Extra Ordinary General Meeting was called and

convenced on 25th March, 2019.

9.2 COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD:

The Company has below mentioned Board level committees:

iv.

Audit Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Share Allotment Committee

Project Committee

10. BOARD EVALUATION:

Appointments of Board of Directors are made by the State Government. As per the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India notification dated 05.06.2015,
Government Companies are exempted from the provision of sub-section 3 clause (p)
of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013. Your company being a Government
Company, provision of Board Evaluation is not applicable.

11. AUDITORS:

M/S M A N J & ASSOCIATES, Chartered Accountant, Ahmedabad were appointed
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the F.Y. 2018-19 by the Comptroller and
Auditor General of India, vide letter no. CA. V/COY/GUJARAT, DIACL(0)/842, dated

28/08/2018.
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(a) Auditors’ Report:

comments.

437 dated 13/09/2019.

12. REPLY TO QUALIFICATION OF STATUTORY AUDITORS REPORT:

The Auditors Report does not contain any qualification. Notes to Accounts and Auditors
remarks in their report are self-explanatory and hence do not call for any further

(b) C & AG Report for the F.Y. 2018-19:
The Company has received "Comment Certificate" from the C&AG on the Accounts

of DIACL for the Financial Year 2018-19 vide letter no. ES-I/A/cs/DIACL/2018-19/0OW.

Comments by C&AG and Management Reply is as Below:

A.  Comments on Cash Flow Statement
1) Cash Flow from Investing Activities.
The above does not include impact of
decrease in Inter Corporate Deposits kept
with GSFS of Rs. 508.88 lakh. The said
decrease has been adjusted in the cash flow
from operating activities instead of cash flow
from investing activities.

This has resulted in understatement of cash
flow from operating activities and
overstatement of cash flow from investing
activities by 508.88 lakh.

Management Reply:

The Schedule Il requires that if compliance
with the requirement of the Act and / or
the notified Accounting tandards requires a
change in the treatment or disclosure in
the Financial Statements as compared to
that provided in the Schedule Ill, the
requirements of the Act and/ or the notified
Accounting Standards will prevail over the
Schedule. According to AS-3 Cash Flow
Statements, Cash is defined to include
cash on hand and demand deposits with
banks. Cash Equivalents are defined as
short term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. The
Standard further explains that an investment
normally qualifies as a cash equivalent only
when it has a short maturity of three
months or less from the date of acquisition.
Hence, normally, deposits with original
maturity of three months or less only
should be classified as cash equivalents.

Hence, Inter Corporate Deposits (ICD's)
with maturity of 1 year with GSFS
amounting to Rs. 5125.82 lakh has been
classified as per requirements of AS-3
Cash Flow Statements. As ICD's have
been classified as Current Assets in Books
of Accounts, effects of increase/decrease
in working capital changes in cash flow
statements have been given accordingly.
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2) Cash Flow from Investing Activities.
Interest Received Rs. 399.65 lakh

The above includes interest accured but not
due from GSFS of Rs. 317.57 lakh and Rs.
0.23 lakh on Inter Corporate Deposit and
Liquid Deposit respectively. However, cash
flow from investing activities should include
only the actual interest received during the
year ending March 31, 2019 of Rs. 378.21
lakh, This has resulted into overstatement of
interest received under cash flow from
investing activities and understatement of
increase in other current assets under cash

flow from operating activities by 21.44 lakh.

B)
3)

Comments on Disclosure

Equity & Liabilities

Share Application Money Pending
Allotment 77.27 Crores.

The Company had made private placement
offers on 29th March, 2019 to AAl and
National Industrial Corridor Development &
Implementation Trust (NICDIT) for issue of
equity shares after obtaining approvals of the
board/ shareholders on 25th March, 2019.

As on balance sheet date, "issued capital"
of the company is increased by 97.12 crore
for subscription. Of which 77.27 crore Share
Application money is subscribed by Airports
Authority of India (AAl) as on March 31, 2019.

This material fact should have been disclosed
to Notte to Accounts.

Management Reply:

Error is related to presentation/disclosure
of total interest income in Cash flow
statement including interest receivable.

Necessary changes/suggestions will be
made in the financial statement of next
year. As the above item is not having
significant financial impact on the financial
statements of the company except
disclosure/ classification.

Management Reply:

Offer for Private Placement of Shares was
made to AAl & NICDIT for subscribing
equity shares of DIACL. Disclosure of
Details of Number of Shares issued will
be incorporated/disclosed at the time of
printing of Annual Report of DIACL for F.Y.
2018-19. Share Application money received
from AAl on 30-03-2019 has been
disclosed in balance sheet as Share
Application Money pending allotment as per
the requirement of Schedule Il of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Moreover, details of disclosure of issued
share capital & subscribed capital will be
rectified & disclosed to that extent in Annual
Report of DIACL for F.Y. 2018-19.

As the above item is not having any
financial impact in terms of figures in
financial statements except disclosure.
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4) Property, Plant & Equipments.
Tangible Assets Rs. 46.01 Lakh

The above includes land of 1426.46 Ha. and
75 Ha allotted by GoG to the Company on
lease at a concessional rate of token lease
rent of Rs. 1 pa for 30 years and further
extendable for another 30 years for the
development of airport including commercial
development outside the airport boundary. As
per Accounting Standard AS 12 "Government
grants in the form of non-monetary assets,
given at a concessional rate, should be
accounted for on the basis of their acquisition
cost. In case a non-monetary assets are
given free of cost, it should be recorded at
a nominal value. Further as per disclosure
requirements under Para 12.1 of AS 12 the
Company should have disclosed the above
fact regarding allotment of land to the
Company by GoG at concessional lease rent
and the treatment of the same in its financial
statements. Thus, the disclosures to financial
statements are deficient to the extent of

compliance of AS-12.

Management Reply:

Government of Gujarat has allotted land of
1426.46 Ha. and 75 Ha. to the company
on lease at concessional rate of token
lease rent of Rs. 1 pa for 30 years and
further extendable for another 30 years for
the development of airport including
commercial development outside the airport
boundary. DIACL has taken the possession
of the land on 08-01-2019 and received
the receipt of Rs. 1 token lease rent dated
07-02-2019.

Leasehold Land has been disclosed as
Tangible fixed assets of DIACL in the
Financial Statements of DIACL at Rs. 1
(Nominal Value) for the year ended on 31-
03-2019. However, the same has not been
disclosed in the notes to accounts due to

oversight.

The same may be incorporated / disclosed
in Annual Report of DIACL for F.Y. 2018-
19.

In addition, necessary disclosure will be incorporated in the financial statement of next

financial year as well.
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

INTERNAL AUDIT & CONTROLS:

M/s. N P K U & Associates, Chartered Accountants, (Formerly known as M/s. N P
K & Associates) Internal Auditors' Reports and findings are discussed with the
management and suitable corrective actions taken as per the directions on an ongoing
basis so as to improve efficiency in activities of the company.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

The Company is in process of obtaining various clearances from the Government &
Regulators. The Risk Management Policy will be finalized once infrastructure of Project
commences.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual
return in MGT-9 as a part of this Annual Report as (ANNEXURE D).

MATERIAL CHANGES:

Airports Authority of India (AAI) had in-principally agreed for equity participation with
Dholera Airport Project and accordingly AAl in its 185th Board Meeting held on 06th
December, 2018 decided to invest Rs. 77.27 Cr. in Dholera International Airport
Company Ltd., so as to take 51% equity in the Company. Similarly, NICDIT had also
decided to increase its present equity from 8.07% to 16% in the Company.

Further, the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) was entered on 19th January,
2019 between AAlI & GoG and a Share Subscription cum Shareholders Agreement
(SSSHA) was signed among AAI-GoG-NICDIT & DIACL on 25th March, 2019.

Subsequent to signing of SSSHA, both AAI and NICDIT had subscribed Rs. 77.27 Cr
and 19.85 cr. respectively in DIACL, so as to take 51% and 16% equity in DIACL.
Accordingly, DIACL had allotted 7,72,70,000 and 1,98,50,000 equity shares to AAIl and
NICIDT respectively on 20-04-2019. Thus, post allotment Equity shareholding of DIACL
is as under:

AAl: 77.27 Crore - (51%)
GoG: 50.00 Crore - (33%)
NICDIT: 24.24 Crore - (16%)

Hence, the proposed Greenfield Airport Project shall be developed under the patronage
of AAl by Dholera International Airport Company Ltd (DIACL) having AAI-GoG-NICDIT
as stakeholders with equity ratio of 51:33:16 respectively.

SIGNIFICANT ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS:

During the year no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts
or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22

23.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER
SECTION186:

Details of Loans: NIL

Details of Investments: — NIL

Details of Guarantee / Security Provided: NIL

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 during the F.Y. 2018-19.

All the relevant details of the transaction have been filled in AOC-2 which is enclosed
as Annesure-A and form part of this director report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The Company (Accounts) Rules, 2014, regarding the conservation of energy, technology
absorption is not applicable to the Company since it has not commenced its business
activities.

Information pursuant to the provisions of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act,
2013 regarding Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption is NIL. Since company
has not commenced any business activities.

Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo are NIL.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

The disclosures as per requirement of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Rule 9 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable to your company.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

Secretarial Audit Report submitted by M/s Gaudana & Gaudana, Practicing Company
Secretaries as per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached with the
Board’s Report as (Annexure — E).

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (c) of sub-section (3) of
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, shall state that —

(@) In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) The directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of
the financial year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;
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24.

25.

(c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

(d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

Your Company is not required to transfer any amounts to Investor Education and
Protection Fund.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for assistance and
Co-operation extended by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, as well as
Government Authorities namely Ministry of Environment & Forest, Gujarat Pollution
Control Board and Airports Authority of India. The Directors are also grateful to Ministry
of Civil Aviation, Government of India, various department of the Government of Guijarat,
Guijarat Infrastructure Development Board, Delhi Mumbai Industrial Corridor Corporation,
Banker, Officers and staff of the Company for their co-operation and look forward for
their continued support.

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Dholera International Airport Company Limited (DIACL)

Place: Gandhinagar Sd/-
Date: 17-09-2019 Chairman
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

(CIN : U62100GJ2012SGC068709)

Reg. Office: Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor, Karmayogi Bhawan, Gandhinagar-382010.

ANNEXURE INDEX

Annexure Content

A Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties in prescribed form AOC-2.

B Details of changes in Key Managerial Personnel & Board of Directors
from 01/04/2017 till date of report

C C & AG Report of the F.Y. 2018-19

D Annual Return Extracts in MGT-9

E Secretarial Audit Report
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Annexure - A

FORM NO. AOC.2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third proviso
thereto:

1. Details of Contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

The Company has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with
its related parties which is/are not at arm's length during financial year 2018-19.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length
basis:

(@) Name(s) of th related party and nature of relationship:
Gunjan B. Kothari — Company Secretary (Professional Service Contract)
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions:

Professional Service contact to provide professional service to look after Company
Secretarial Compliance as applicable to the Company.

(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions:

The duration of contract is 1 (one) year form the date of signing of the contract,
subject to renewal upon mutual agreement.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including
the value, if any:

To provide professional service to look after Company Secretarial Compliance
as applicable to the Company with a monthly fee of Rs. 30,000 P.M. (subject
to 10% deduction of TDS)

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 27-09-2018

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Dholera International Airport Company Limited (DIACL)

Place: Gandhinagar Sd/-
Date: 17-09-2019 Chairman
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Annexure-B

Details of changes in Key Managerial Personnel & Board of Directors
01/04/2018 to till date of report:

from

Sr. |Name & DIN of Director Designation Date of Date of
No. Appointment | Ceasation
1. | Shri Anuj Aggarwal Additional Director 17-09-2019 | Continue
DIN: 06575625 & Chairman
2. | Dr. Guruprasad Mohapatra, IAS Additional Director | 25-06-2019 |01-08-2019
DIN: 06575625 & Chairman
3. | Shri M. K. Das, IAS Chairman 18-05-2017 |31-05-2019
DIN: 06530792 Director 31-05-2019 | Continue
4. | Shri Pankaj Kumar, IAS Director 12-07-2017 |25-06-2019
DIN: 00267528
5. | Shri M. S. Dagur, IAS Director 29-11-2017 [04-09-2018
DIN: 01622222
6. | Shri M. K. Jadav Director 04-09-2018 |25-06-2019
DIN: 01193143
7. | Shri Alkesh Kumar Sharma, IAS Director 17-09-2016 [16-09-2019
DIN: 02724743
8. [Shri Ashwini Kumar, IAS Director 02-02-2018 |25-06-2019
DIN: 06581753
9. [Shri Jai Prakash Shivahare, IAS Director 20-09-2017 [02-02-2018
DIN: 07162392 Managing Director | 02-02-2018 |31-05-2019
Director 31-05-2019 [25-06-2019
Managing Director | 25-06-2019 |04-09-2019
10. | Shri Hareet Shukla, 1AS Director 16-09-2019 117-09-2019
DIN: 02858978 Managing Director 17-09-2019 | Continue
11. | Smt. Avantika Singh Aulakh, IAS Director 22-06-2016 |15-05-2018
DIN: 07549438
12. | Dr. Vikrant Pandey, IAS Director 15-05-2018 |25-06-2019
DIN: 08163879
13. | Shri Sandeep Vasava Director 17-09-2016 |25-06-2019
DIN: 02037918
14. | Capt. Ajay Chauhan Director 01-08-2015 |25-06-2019
DIN: 02893968
15. | Shri Hurbert W. Christian Director 04-03-2014 | Continue
DIN: 06852871
16. | Shri Anil Kumar Pathak Additional Director | 25-06-2019 | Continue
DIN: 08213061
17. | Shri G. Chandramouli Additional Director | 25-06-2019 | Continue
DIN: 06624504
18. | Smt. V. Vidya Additional Director | 25-06-2019 | Continue
DIN: 08366688
19. | Shri Gunjan B. Kothari Company Secretary | 16-08-2018 | Continue
20. | Shri Shailesh G. Patel Chief Financial 03-09-2019 | Continue
Officer

26




ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019

Confidential

By Regd. Post ANNEXURE - C
A7 Office of the

Principal Accountant General (E&RSA), Gujarat
No. ES-I /A/cs/DIACL/2018-19/0W-437 13-09-2019

To

The Managing Director,

Dholera International Airport Company Limited
Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor,

Karmayogi Bhavan,

Gandhinagar - 382010.

Subject:- Comment of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 143(6)
(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the financial statements of Dholera
International Airport Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019.

Sir,

Please find enclosed 'Comment Certificate' of the Comptroller and Auditor General
of India under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 on the accounts of Dholera
International Airport Company Limited for the year ended 31 March 2019 for being
placed before the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Under Section 143(6)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 the comments of the Comptroller
and Auditor General of India are required to be placed before the Annual General Meeting
in the same manner and at the same time as the Auditors' Report of the Company. The
date of placing the comments of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India before the
Annual General Meeting may please be intimated to this office.

Six copies of the printed accounts may please be sent to this office for our
use and record.

Receipt of this letter with its enclosures may please be acknowledged.

Yours faithfully,
sd/-
Encl: As above Sr. Dy. Accountant General (ES-l)

TGO e, T, IEHEE-380 009. Audit Bhavan, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380 009.
W / Phone : 079-26403713, 26561327, 26405874, 26561282, 26560892
el / Fax : 079-26561853 E-mail : agaugujarat1@cag.gov.in
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA
UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
COMPANY LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019.

The preparation of financial statements of Dholera International Airport Company
Limited, Gandhinagar for the year ended 31 March 2019 in accordance with the
financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act) is the
responsibility of the Management of the Company. The Statutory Auditors appointed
by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the Act are
responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of
the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by
them vide their revised Audit Report dated 27 August, 2019 which
supersedes their earlier Audit reprt dated 25 June, 2019.

I, on the behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted
a supplementary audit under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act of the financial
statements of Dholera International Airport Company Limited for the year ended
31 March 2019. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without
access to the working papers of the Statutory Auditors and is limited primarily to
inquiries of the Statutory Auditors and Company personnel and a selective examination
of some of the accounting records. The Audit reprt has been revised by the Statutory
Auditor to give effect of some of my audit observation raised during supplementary
audit.

Based on my supplementary audit, | would like to highlight the following significant
matters under Section 143 (6)(b) of the Act which have come to my attention and
which in my view are necessary for enabling a better understanding of the financial
statements and the related Audit Report.

A. Comments on Cash Flow Statement
1. Cash flow from Investing Activities

The above does not include impact of decrease in Inter Corporate Deposits kept with
Gujarat State Financial Services (GSFS) of Rs. 508.88 lakh. The said decrease has
been adjusted in the cash flow from Operating Activities instead of cash flow from
Investing Activities.

This has resulted in understatement of cash flow from Operating Activities and
overstatement of Cash flow from Investing Activities by Rs. 508.88 lakh.
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2. Cash flow from Investing Activities
Interest Received Rs. 399.65 lakh

The above includes Rs. 317.57 lakh and Rs. 0.23 lakh being interest accured but not
due from GSFS of on Inter Corporate Deposit and Liquid Deposit respectively. However,
cash flow from Investing Activities should include only the actual interest of Rs. 378.21
lakh received during the year ending March 31, 2019. This has resulted in overstatement
of interest received under cash flow from Investing Activities and understatement of
increase in other Current Assets under cash flow from Operating Activities by Rs. 21.44
lakh.

B. Comments on Disclosure
3. Equity & Liabilities
Share Application Money Pending Allotment (Note No. 3.3) Rs. 77.27 crore

The Company had made private placement offers on 29th March, 2019 to Airport Authority
of India and National Industrial Corridor Development & Implementation Trust (NICDIT) for
issue of equity shares after obtaining approvals of the board/ shareholders on 25th March,
2019.

As on Balance Sheet date, "Issued Capital" of the Company increased by Rs. 97.12
crore for subscription. Of which, Rs. 77.27 crore Share Application money is subscribed
by Airports Authority of India (AAl) as on March 31, 2019.

The above material fact should have been disclosed in the Notes to Accounts.

4. Property, Plant & Equipment (Note No. 3.7)
Tangible Assets Rs. 46.01 lakh

The above includes land of 1426.46 Ha. and 75 Ha allotted by GoG to the Company on
lease at a concessional rate of token lease rent of Rupee 1 per annum for 30 years and
further extendable for another 30 years for the development of airport including
commercial development outside the airport boundry.

As per Accounting Standard AS 12 "Government grants in the form of non-monetary
assets, given at a concessiona rate, should be accounted for on the basis of their
acquisition cost. In case a non - monetary assets are given free of cost, it should be
recorded at a nominal value."

The Company should have disclosed the above fact in its financial statements. Thus, the
disclosures to financial statements are deficient to the extent of non compliance of AS 12.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller and Auditor General of india

sd/-

(H. K. Dharmadarshi)
Pr. Accountant General (E&RSA), Gujarat

Place: Ahmedabad
Date :
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
(CIN : U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Reg. Office: Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor, Karmayogi Bhawan, Gandhinagar-382010.

ANNEXURE-D
FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
As on Financial Year ended on 31-03-2019

Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the
Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014.

I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. CIN U62100GJ2012SGC068709
Foreign Company NA
Registration Number/GLN
Registration Date 20th January, 2012

2. | Category of the Company 1. Public Company (\/)

(PI. tick) 2. Private Company (%)
3. | Sub Category of the Company| | 1. Government Company \
[Please tick whichever are 2. Small Company x
applicable] 3. One Person Company X
4. Subsidiary of Foreign Company X
5. NBFC X
6. Guarantee Company X
7. Limited by shares \
8. Unlimited Company x
9. Company having share capital \/
10. Company not having share capital x
11. _Company Registered under Section 8 X

Whether shares listed on NO

recognized Stock Exchange(s)

4. | If yes, details of stock SN |Stock Exchange Name Code
exchanges where shares 1
are listed 2

5. | AGM details:

Whether extension of AGM was
granted — Yes / No. ( If yes,
provide reference number, date No.
of approval letter and the period
up to which extension granted)

If Annual General Meeting was N.A.
not held, specify the reasons
for not holdingthe same
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Add: Rajiv Gandhi Bhavan, Safdarjung
Airport, New Delhi-110003

6. NAME AND REGISTERED OFFICE ADDRESS OF COMPANY:
Company Name DHOLERA INTERNATIONALAIRPORT COMPANY
LIMITED
Address BLOCKNO. 1, A-2 WING, 3f° FLOOR, KARMAYOGI
BHAVAN,
Town / City GANDHINAGAR
State Guijarat
Pin Code: 382010
Country Name INDIA
Country Code IN
Telephone (With STD Area | 079-232 58528
Code Number)
Fax Number :
Email Address cs-diacl-dhol@gujarat.gov.in
Website www.gidb.org
Name of the Police Station Sector-7, Police Station, Gandhinagar
having jurisdiction where the
registered office is situated
Address for correspondence, NIL
if different from address of
registered office:
7. Name and Address of Registrar & Transfer Agents (RTA):- Full address and contact
details to be given.
Registrar & Transfer Agents NA
(RTA):-
Address NA
Town / City NA
State NA
Pin Code: NA
Telephone (With STD  Area
Code Number) NA
Fax Number : NA
Email Address NA
Il PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:- (All the business activities
contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)
SN | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
products / services Produet/service of the company
1 Development of International The Company is yet to
Airport Project 43 commence its Business activity
lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:-
[No. of Companies for which information is being filled]
Sr. | NAME AND ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY CIN/GLN HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY /
ASSOCIATE
1 Airports Authority of India" N.A. Holding

Airports Authority of India (AAIl) is an authority constituted by an Act of Parliament and came into being on 1st April, 1995.
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
(A) Category - wise Share Holding:-

(i) Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of | No. of Shares held at the end of the | % Change
Shareholders the year[As on 01-04-2018] year[As on 31-03-2019] during
De Physical Total % of | De | Physical | Total % of the year
mat Total |mat Total
Shares Shares

A. Promoters

[1]Indian

a) Individual/ Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
HUF

b) Central Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Gowvt.

c) State Nil  [50000000 |50000000] 91.93 | Nil | 50000000 (50000000 | 91.93 Nil
Govt(s)

d) Bodies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Corp.

e) Banks / Fl Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

f) Qx;’:gi;rsgg/*'kesh Nil | 4390000 | 4390000| 8.07 | Nil | 4390000 | 4390000 | 8.07 Nil

CEO,National Industrial
Corridor Development &

Implementation Trust

Total Nil 154390000 | 54390000| 100 Nil |54390000[54390000 100 Nil
shareholding

of Promoter

[A]

B. Public

Shareholding

[1]Institutions Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

a) Mutual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Funds

b) Banks / Fl Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

c) Central Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Gowt.

d) State Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Govt(s)

e) Venture Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Capital Funds

f) Insurance Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Companies

g) Fiis Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

h) Foregin Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Venture

Capital Funds
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i) Others Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(specify)
Sub-total Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(B)(1):-
2. Non-
Institutions
a) Bodies Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Corp.
i) Indian Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
ii) Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
b) Individuals Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
i) Individual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
shareholders

holding nominal
share capital up to
Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1 lakh

c) Others Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(specify)

Non Resident Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Indians

Overseas Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Corporate
Bodies

Foreign Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Nationals

Clearing Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Members

Trusts Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

Foreign Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Bodies - D R

Sub-total Nil Nil Nil Nil | Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
(B) (2):-

Total Public Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)(2)

C. Shares Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
held by
Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total Nil  [54390000 [54390000] 100 | Nil [5439000064390000] 100 Nil
(A+B+C)
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(B) Shareholding of Promoter:

Sr.

Shareholder's Name

Shareholding at the

Shareholding at the end

%

No beginning of The Year of the year change
(As on 01-04-2018) (As on 31-03-2019) in
No. of % of % of No. of % of % of Share
Shares total | Shares | Shares total Shares | holding
Shares |Pledged/ Shares |Pledged/| during
of the | encum- ofthe | encum-| the
company| bered company| bered year
to total to total
shares shares
1 | Hon'ble Governor of Gujarat Jointly
with Shri M. K. Das, IAS 10 NIL NIL 10 NIL NIL NIL
2 | Hon’ble Governor of Gujarat Jointly
with Shri Ashwinikumar, IAS,
CEO, GIDB 10 NIL NIL 10 NIL NIL NIL
3 | Hon’ble Governor of Gujarat Jointly
with Shri D. G. Chaudhary,
Deputy Secretary 10 NIL NIL 10 NIL NIL NIL
4 | Hon’ble Governor of Gujarat Jointly
with Shri Anand Bihola,
Deputy Secretary 10 NIL NIL 10 NIL NIL NIL
5 | Hon’ble Governor of Gujarat Jointly
with Shri B. S. Mehta,
Deputy Secretary 10 NIL NIL 10 NIL NIL NIL
6 | Hon’ble Governor of Gujarat Jointly
with Smt. Maulika Shah,
Under Secretary 10 NIL NIL 10 NIL NIL NIL
7 | Hon’ble Governor of Gujarat Jointly
with Shri Ajay Patel,
Under Secretary 10 NIL NIL 10 NIL NIL NIL
8 | Hon’ble Governor of Gujarat Jointly
with Shri Kamlesh Makwana,
Under Secretary NIL NIL NIL 10 NIL NIL NIL
9 | Hon’ble Governor of Gujarat Jointly
with Shri Ratnesh Shah,
Deputy Section Officer 10 NIL NIL 10 NIL NIL NIL
10| Hon’ble Governor of Gujarat Jointly
with Shri Hiren Patel,
Deputy Section Officer NIL NIL NIL 10 NIL NIL NIL
11| Shri Alkesh Kumar Sharma, CEO,
National Industrial Corridor, Develo-
pment and Implementation Trust 43,90,0001 8.07 NIL 43,90,000 8.07 NIL NIL
12| Hon’ble Governor Of Gujarat 4,99,99,900 91.93 NIL 4,99,99,999| 91.93 NIL NIL
Total 5,43,90,000 100 5,43,90,000( 100 NIL
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(C) Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sr. | Particulars Shareholding at the begining | Cumulative Shareholding
No. of the year 01-04-2018 during the year 31-03-2019
No. of % of total shares | No. of % of total shares
shares of the company | shares of the company
At the beginning of the year 5,43,90,000( 100% 5,43,90,000 | 100%
Date wise Increase / Decrease in NIL NIL NIL NIL
Promoters Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year 5,43,90,000( 100% 5,43,90,000 | 100%

(D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
Sr. | For Each of the Top Ten Shareholding at the begining | Cumulative Shareholding
No.| Shareholders of the year 01-04-2018 during the year 31-03-2019
No. of % of total shares | No.of % of total shares
shares of the company shares | ofthe company
At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Date wise Increase / Decrease in NIL NIL NIL NIL
Promoters Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc):
At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL

(E)

Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sr.

Shareholding of each Directors and each

Shareholding at the

Cumulative Shareholding

No.| Key Managerial Personnel begining of the year during the year
No. of % of total shares | No. of % of total shares
shares of the company shares | ofthe company

1 | Shri M. K. Das, IAS, Chairman & Director, DIACL*

At the beginning of the year 10 NIL - -

Date wise Increase/Decreases in Promoters - - NIL NIL

Shareholding during the year

At the end of the Year - - 10 NIL
2 | Shri Ashwinikumar, IAS, Director, DIACL*

At the beginning of the year 10 NIL - -

Date wise Increase/Decreases in Promoters - - NIL NIL

Shareholding during the year

At the end of the Year - - 10 NIL
3 | Shri Alkesh Kumar Sharma, CEO,

National Industrial Corridor Development

and Implementation Trust, Director, DIACL

At the beginning of the year 43,90,000| 8.07 - -

Date wise Increase/Decreases in Promoters - - NIL NIL

Shareholding during the year

At the end of the Year - - 4390000 | 8.07
4 | Shri Gunjan B. Kothari, Director, DIACL

At the beginning of the year NIL NIL - -

Date wise Increase/Decreases in Promoters - - NIL NIL

Shareholding during the year

At the end of the Year - - NIL NIL
* Held by Government nominee, hence held jointly with Honourable Governor of Gujarat.
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(F) INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of

the financial year

i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL

ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (i + ii + iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL

Change in Indebtedness during

the financial year

*  Addition NIL NIL NIL NIL

+ Reduction NIL NIL NIL NIL
Net Change NIL NIL NIL NIL

Indebtedness at the end of the

financial year

i) Principal Amount NIL NIL NIL NIL

ii) Interest due but not paid NIL NIL NIL NIL

iii) Interest accrued but not due NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (i + ii + iii) NIL NIL NIL NIL

(V) REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
A.  Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
No. Amount

1 [ Gross Salary NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Income-tax Act,1961(Medical Reimbursement)

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
17(3) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

2 | Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

3 | Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

4 | Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
- as % of profit
- others, specify...

5 | Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (A) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
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B. Remuneration to other directors:
Sr. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
No. Amount
1 [Independent Directors NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Fee for attending board NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
committee meetings
Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (1) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
2 | Other Non-Executive Directors NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Fee for attending board NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
committee meetings
Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (2) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total (B) = (1 +2) NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total Managerial NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/ MANAGER /WTD
SN.| Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO CS CFO Total
Gunjan Kothari
(16-08-2018
to 31-03-2019)
1 [ Gross Salary NIL 1,95,484 NIL 1,95,484
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in NIL NIL NIL NIL
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Incometax NIL NIL NIL NIL
Act, 1961 (Medical Reimbursement)
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section NIL NIL NIL NIL
17(3) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
2 | Stock Option NIL NIL NIL NIL
3 | Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL NIL
4 |Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL
- as % of profit NIL NIL NIL NIL
Others, specify... NIL NIL NIL NIL
5 | Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL
Total NIL 1,95,484 NIL 1,95,484
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Xil. PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty | Authority Appeal made
Companies Act | Description | /Punishment/ [RD/NCLT/ | ifany (give

Compoinding COURT] Details)
fees imposed

A.COMPANY

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

B.DIRECTORS

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

C.OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Place : Gandhinagar Sd/-
Date : 17-09-2019 Chairman

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Dholera International Airport Company Limited
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Annexure-E W & W

(Company Secretaries)
Formerly known as Arvind Gaudana & Company
#307, Ashirwad Paras, Nr. Prahladnagar Garden, Corporate Road,
Prahladnagar, Satellite, Ahmedabad-380 015.
Ph. : +91 79 - 40324567 / 40324568, Email: arvindg_cs@yahoo.com

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 3157, MARCH, 2019
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members

Dolera International Airport Company Limited
(CIN:U62100GJ2012SGC068709)

Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor,

Karmayogi Bhavan, Gandhinagar - 382010.

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Dholera International Airport Company
Limited (hereinafter referred as 'the Company'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a
manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expiressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verfication of the Company's books, papers, minutes books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 (‘Audit
Period") complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter;

We further report that maintenance of proper and updated Books, Papers, Minutes Books,
filing of Forms and Returns with applicable regulatory authorities and maintaining other
records is responsibility of management and Company, our responsibility is to verfity the
content of the documents produced before us, make objective evaluation of the content in
respect of compliance and report thereon. We have examined the books, papers, minute
books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Compnay for the
financial year ended on 31st March, 2019 according to the provisions of:
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(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder,;
(i) The Securities Contracts (Rgeulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
(i) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and Bye-laws thained thereunder,

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent to foreign direct investment, overseas direct investment and external
commercial borrowings;

Provision of (ii) to (iv) above were not applicable to the Company during the audit
period.

(v) The following Regulations and Candelines prescribed under Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act. 1992 ('SEBI Act')

(@) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substaintial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of Indian (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme
and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014,

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008,

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share
transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with
client;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009;

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of Securities) Regulations,
1998;

Clauses V (a) to (h) were not applicable to the Company during the audit period
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i)  Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(i)  Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Not applicable to the Company during the audit
period)

We further report that no other specific law applicable to Company as per information
provided by the Company.
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During the year under report the company has complied with the provision of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except;

(a) Appointment of Independent Directors is pending as provided under Section
149(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014;

(b) In the absense of Independent Directors on the Board, the Audit Committee
and Nomination and Remuneration Committee has not fulfilled criteria of
forming a majority of Independent Director as per Section 177 and 178(1)
respectively read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Meetings of the Board and
its Powers) Rules, 2014.

However, Management has informed that nature of Company has been changed to
Joint Venture. Share Subscription cum Shareholders Agreement has been executed
between Government of Gujarat (GoG), Airport Authority of India (AAl), National
Industrial Corridor Development & Implementation Trust (NICDIT) and Dholera
International Airport Company Limited (DIACL) on 25th March, 2019. Hence, as per
Ministry of Corporate Affairs notification number G.S.R. 839(E) dated 5th July, 2017,
Joint Venture Companies are exempted from the requirements of the appointment of
Independent Directors.

Further, we observe that;
(i) Full time Company Secretary was appoiinted w.e.f. 16" August, 2018 by the Company;

(i)~ During the year under review Appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO) as Key
Managerial Officer as per requirements of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 is
pending. However, Management has informed that Company has invited applications
for appointment of CFO and candidate for CFO has been selected. Necessary required
formalities for his appointment as CFO will be complied shortly.

We further report that except as above, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly
constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors except
Independent Directors. The change in the composition of the Board of Directors took place
during the audit period were carreied out in compliance with provisions of the Act. Adequate
notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent a least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting. All the decisions were carried out unanimously and
recorded as part of the minutes.
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We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operation of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there no specific events/actions ahving major
bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws.

For Gaudana & Gaudana
(Company Secretaries)
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 31/08/2019 sd/-
CS Arvind Gaudana

Senior Partner
FCS No: 2838, C.P. No: 2183

Note: This reports is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
'"ANNEXURE A' and Forms an integral part of this report.
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Gawdana & Gawdana

(Company Secretaries)
Formerly known as Arvind Gaudana & Company
#307, Ashirwad Paras, Nr. Prahladnagar Garden, Corporate Road,
Prahladnagar, Satellite, Ahmedabad-380 015.
Ph. : +91 79 - 40324567 / 40324568, Email: arvindg_cs@yahoo.com

Annexure A

To,

The Members

Dolera International Airport Company Limited
(CIN:U62100GJ2012SGC068709)

Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor,

Karmayogi Bhavan, Gandhinagar - 382010.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the mangement of the Dholera
International Airport Company Limited (hereinfater referred as the company). Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these Secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices, we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our Opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The Compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulation, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of records and procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance to the future viability of Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the
affairs of the Company.

For Gaudana & Gaudana
(Company Secretaries)
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 31/08/2019 sd/-
CS Arvind Gaudana

Senior Partner
FCS No: 2838, C.P. No: 2183
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M/SMANJ & ASSOCIATES A-401, Satyamev-Il, Opp Kargil Petrol Pump,
Chartered A ant S. G. Highway, Sola, Ahmedabad-380060, Gujarat, India.
artered Accountants Ph:+91-79-40030200

Cell: +91 98980 22173
E-mail : hello@camanj.com
W - www.camanj.com

REVISED INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To,

The Members of
DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements:

Opinion
Being a Government Company, The Office of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India
has carried our supplementary Audit of the Company pursuant to the provisions of
section 143(6) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Office of The Comptroller & Auditor
General of India has issued provisional Comments on the Independent Auditor's Report

on the Financial Statements, considering which; we hereby revise our original report
dated 25th June, 2019.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Dholera International
Airport Company Ltd. (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31
March, 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity,
Statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid standlone financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2019, and profit, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting the frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of internal financial control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no

realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial

reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably by expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.
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Other Matter:

We did not audit the financial statements / information of NIL branches included in the
standalone financial statements of the company whose financial statements/financial
information reflect total assets of Rs. NIL as at 31st March 2019 and the total revenue
of Rs. NIL for the year ended on that date, as considered in the standalone financial
statements / information of these branches have been audited by the branch auditors
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion in so far as it related to the
amount and disclosures included in respect of branches is based solely on such
branch auditors.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order") issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure-A, a statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and in accordance with the Directions and
sub-directions issued by office of Accountant General (E&RSA) U/s 143(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013. We have complied with all the directions issued and our
comments thereon is as per Annexure — B to this report.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of
our audit.

(b) In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept
by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash flow
Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
accounts.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on
31st March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f)  Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (1) of Sub-section 3
of section 143 of the companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") is enclosed an
Annexire-C to this report.

46




ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

(i) the Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position.

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For, M AN J & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 0131542W

Sd/-
Place: Ahmedabad. NITESHKUMAR DELVADIYA
Date: 27-08-2019 (Partner)
Membership No. 131236
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“ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITOR'S REPORT”

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL
AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED for the year ended 31t March, 2019.

On the basis of the information and explanation given to us during the course of our audit,
we report that:

1.

(@) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of its fixed assets.

(b) These fixed assets have been physically verified by the management at reasonable
intervals there was no Material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Total Assets of company includes Immovable property also and the title deeds of
immovable properties are held in the name of the company.

Physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management and there is no material discrepancies were noticed.

The Company has not granted loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security all mandatory provisions of
section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with.

The company has not accepted any deposits.

Maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central Government under
sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(@) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident
Fund, Employee's State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales tax, Service Tax, Duty of
Customs, Duty of Excise, Value added Tax, Cess and any other statutory dues
to the appropriate authorities. There are no such arrears as at 31st March, 2019
outstanding for a period more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) Dues of income tax or sales tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of
excise or value added tax have been deposited on time there is no dispute is
pending on the part of company. There are no such arrears as at 31st March,
2019 outstanding for a period more than six months from the date they became
payable.

The Company hasn't made any default in repayment of loans or borrowing to a financial
institution, bank, Government or dues to debenture holders.

The company doesn't raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments).
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Neither company has done any fraud nor by its officers or employees so nothing to be
disclosed separately.

Managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals Mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act.

Company is not a Nidhi Company hence nothing to be disclosed for any provisions
applicable on Nidhi Company.

All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
Financial Statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards;

The company has made private placement of shares during the year.

The Company has vide its Board approval on 25th March, 2019 approved for offering,
issuing and allotting 9,71,20,000 equity shares on the private placement basis to Airports
Authority of India (AAl) and National Industrial Corridor Development & Implementation
Trust (NICDIT). The Company has received Share Application Money from AAl amounting
to Rs. 77.27 Crores on 30th March, 2019 (7,72,70,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10.00
Each)

The company hasn'’t entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934.

For, M AN J & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 0131542W

Sd/-

Place: Ahmedabad NITESHKUMAR DELVADIYA
Date: 27-08-2019 (Partner)

M. No. 131236
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"ANNEXURE - B"

DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

REPORT UNDER SECTION 143(5) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
FOR THE ACCOUNTING YEAR 2018-19

No.

Questionnaire

Response/Remedial Measures

As

per Directions u/s. 143(5) of Compani

Whether the Company has system in
place to process all the accouting
transactions through IT system? If
yes, the implication of processing of
accounting transactions outside IT
system on the integrity of the
accounts alongwith the financials
implications, if any, may be stated.

es Act, 2013

All the accounting transactions are entered
and recorded in through IT System.

identification of projects to be taken
up under Public Private Partnership
is in line with the guidelines / policies
of the Government? Comment on
deviation if any.

2 | Whether there is any restructuring of | The company has not taken any loans, so
an excisiting loan or cases of waiver | not applicable.
/write off of debts/ loans/ interest etc.
made by a lender to the company
due to the company's inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the financial
impact may be stated.

3 | Whether funds received / receivable | Funds received for DIACL, project from
for specific from central / state | state Government and AAlI has been
agencies were properly accounted | properly accounted for in the Books of
for / utilized as per its terms and | Accounts. Unutilised funds have been kept
conditions? List the cases of |in line with the Directions issued by State
deviation. Government.

As per Sector specific Sub-Directions u/s. 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

1 Whether The Company Has Taken | The Company has received land on Lease
adequate measures to prevent | on 08-01-2019 and compound will is yet not
encroachment of idle land owned by | constructed on it.
it. Whether any land of the Company
is encroached. Under litigation, not
put to use or declared surplus?

Details may be provided.
2 | Whether the system in vogue for | The project is under preliminary study

phase. Except feasibility study, no actual
work has been started related to
Development of the Project.
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As per Directions u/s. 143(5) of Companies Act, 2013

No. Questionnaire Response/Remedial Measures

3 | Whether system for monitoring the| The project is under preliminary study
execution of works vis-a-vis the| phase. No works contract agreements have
milestones stipulated the agreement is | been executed related to Project.
in existence and the impact of cost
escalation, if any, revenues / losses
from contracts, etc., have been
properly accounted for in the books.

4 | Whether funds received/ receivable for| Funds received for DIACL project from
specific schemes from central/ state state Government ~ and . AAl has been

. properly accounted for in the Books of
agencies were properly accounted for| accounts. Unutilised funds have been kept
/utilized? List the cases of deviations. | in line with the Directions issued by State

Government.

5 | Whether the bank guarantees have | Not applicable.
been revalidated in time?

6 | Comment on the confirmation of| The company has obtained all the balance
balance of trade receivables, trade| confirmations i.e trade payables, term
payables, term  deposits, bank | deposits, bank accounts and cash.
accounts and cash obtained.

7 | The cost incurred on abandoned| Not Applicable.
projects may be quantified and the
amount actually written-off shall be
mentioned.

For, M AN J & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

Firm Reg No. 0131542W

Sd/-

Place: Ahmedabad NITESHKUMAR DELVADIYA
Date: 27-08-2019 (Partner)
M. No. 131236
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ANNEXURE - C : TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DHOLERA
INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED. ("The Company") as of 31 March, 2019
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on tha date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Companys management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI nd deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

52




ANNUAL REPORT 2018-2019

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods and subject to the risk
that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, and adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effetively as at 31 March, 2019, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For, M AN J & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No. 0131542W

Sd/-

Place: Ahmedabad NITESHKUMAR DELVADIYA
Date: 27-08-2019 (Partner)
M. No. 131236
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2019

(Amount in )
Sr.| Particulars Note No. As at As At
No. 31-03-2019 31-03-2018
| | EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(i) Shareholder's Funds
(@) Share Capital 341 54,39,00,000 54,39,00,000
(b) Surplus 3.2 6,97,74,483 12,02,42,666
(c) Money received against Share Warrants - -
(if) Share Application Money Pending Allotment 33 77,27,00,000 -
(i) Non-Current Liabilities - -
(@) Long Term Borrwings - -
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) - -
(c) Other Long Term Liabilities - -
(d) Long Term Provisions - -
(iv) Current Liabilities
(@) Short Term Borrowings - -
(b) Trade Payables 34 1,68,434 1,86,793
(c) Other Current Liabilities 3.5 1,64,89,355 2,04,91,618
(d) Short Term provisions 3.6 7,10,336 4,45121
TOTAL 1,40,37,42,608 68,52,66,198
Il | ASSETS
(i) Non-Current Assets
(@) Property, Plant & Equipments 3.7
(i) Tangible Assets 46,01,168 51,08,918
(i) Intangible Assets 53,103 65,487
(iii) Capital Work in Progress 5,62,28,501 5,62,28,501
(iv) Intangible Assets Under Development - -
(b) Non Current Investments - -
(c) Defeffred Tax Assets (Net) - -
(d) Long Term Loans and Advances - -
(e) Other Non Current Assets - -
(i) Current Assets
(@) Current Investments - -
(b) Inventories - -
(c) Trade Receivables 3.8 12,875 2,483
(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 3.9 77,85,79,089 54.,44,630
(e) Short term loans and advances 3.10 56,42,67,872 61,84,16,179
(f) Other Current Assets - -
Total 1,40,37,42,608 68,52,66,198

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1 to 4

As per our report of even date, For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of
For, MA N J & Associates Dholera International Airport Company Limited

Chartered Accountants Sd/- Sd/-

(Firm Reg. No. 0131542W) Managing Director Director
Sd/- Sd/

Niteshkumar Delvadiya )

Partner, Membership No. 131236 Company Secretary

Place : Gandhinagar Date : 25-06-2019
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1ST APRIL2018 TO 31ST MARCH 2019

(Amount in )

Sr. | Particulars Note No. | For the period For the period
No. 1st April to 1st April to
31 March, 2019 | 31 March, 2018

| | Revenue from Operations
Il | Other Income 41 3,99,65,122 3,80,57,713
Il | Total Revenue (I + II) 3,99,65,122 3,80,57,713

IV | Expenses:

(@) | Cost of Materials Consumed - -
(b) | Purchase of Stock-in-Trade - -
(c) | Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, - -

Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade

(d) | Manufacturing and Other Direct Expenses
(e) | Employee Benefit Expenses (Salary of Amit Chavda) 13,44,631 11,38,742
(f) | Finance Costs - -
(9) | Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 4.2 7,19,093 5,07,191
(h) | Administrative and Other Expenses 4.3 96,15,811 44,96,629

Total Expenses 1,16,79,535 61,42,562

V [ Profit before Exceptional, Extraordinary and 2,82,85,587 3,19,15,151

prior period items and tax (lll-IV)

VI | Exceptional Items - -

VIl | Profit before Extraordinary items 2,82,85,587 3,19,15,151
and Tax (V-VI)
VIII'| Extraordinary ltems/Prior Period Expenses 4.4 82,758 2,11,370
X | Profit Before Tax (VII-VIII) 2,82,02,829 3,17,03,781
X | Tax Expense:
(@) Current Tax 4.5 79,64,012 73,37,992
(b) Deferred Tax - -

X | Profit / (Loss) for the period from Continuing 2,02,38,817 2,43,65,789
Operations (IX-X)

Xl | Profit / (Loss) from Discountinuing Operations - -
Xl | Tax Expense of Discountinuing Operations - -

XV | Profit / (Loss) from Discountinuing Operations

after Tax (XII-XIII) - -

XV | Profit / (Loss) for the period (XI+XIV) 2,02,38,817 2,43,65,789

XVI| Earnings Per Equity Share:

(a) Basic 0.37 0.45
(b) Diluted 0.37 0.45

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts 1 to 4

As per our report of even date, For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of

For, MAN J & Associates Dholera International Airport Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

, Sd/- Sd/-
Firm Reg. No. 0131542W

(Firm SZQIJ- © ) Managing Director Director
Niteshkumar Delvadiya Sd/-

Partner, Membership No. 131236

Place : Gandhinagar Date : 25-06-2019 Company Secretary
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR 2018-19

(Amount in %)

SN | Particulars

2018-19

201718

Amount in
Rs.

Amount in
Rs.

Amount in
Rs.

Amount in
Rs.

A | CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before Tax and Extra Ordinary Items
Add back:

(a) Depreciation

(b) Loss on Sale of Fixed Asset

(c) Miscellaneous Expenses (Amotized)

(d) Interest expenses

Deduct:

(a) Interest income

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITALCHANGES
Adjustment For Working Capital Changes:
(a) Increase in Inventories

(b) Increase in Trade and Other Receivables/Current Asset
(c) Increase in Trade Payables

(d) Other Current Liabilities & Provisions

CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Deduct:

Direct Taxes paid/Tax Refund

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

B | CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Outflow:

(a) Purchase of Fixed Asssets

Inflow:

(a) Sale of Fixed Asset

(b) Interest Received

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

C | CASHFLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Inflow:

(a) Proceed from Term Loan & Other Loan (Net)
Increase in Bank borrowings - Working Capital
Issue of share capital

Increase in Share Capital Contribution (Share
Application Money)

(e) Payment of Interim Dividend

Outflow:

(a) InterestPaid

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(b)
(c)
(d)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

OPENING BALANCE- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT
CLOSING BALANCE- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

7,19,093

-3,99,65,122

5,41,37,915
-18,359
3,07,868

2,82,02,829

-3,92,46,029

-1,10,43,200

5,44,27,424

5,07,191

-3,79,91,713

-4,25,69,021
-73,763
4,42,851

3,17,03,781

-3,74,84,522

-57,80,741

-4,21,99,933

-1,98,959

3,99,65,122

77,27,00,000
-7,07,07,000

4,33,84,224

-1,20,08,928

3,13,75,296

3,97,66,163

7,11,41,459

70,19,93,000

77,31,34,459

54,44.630

77,85,79,089

-24,98,700

3,79,91,713

-4,79,80,674

-4,79,80,674

3,54,93,013

-1,24,87,661

-1,24,87,661

1,79,32,291

54,44,630

Note:

Previous Year's data Regrouped and Rearranged whereever necessary

As per our report of even date,

For, M A N J & Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Reg. No. 0131542W)

Sd/-
Niteshkumar Delvadiya
Partner, Membership No. 131236
Place : Gandhinagar

Date : 25-06-2019

For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of
Dholera International Airport Company Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Managing Director Director
Sd/-
Company Secretary
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED ON 31ST MARCH 2019

1. Background:

The DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 on 20th day of January, 2012 and received Certificate of business
Commencement on 9th day of February, 2012. The entire paid-up equity share capital of
the Company is held by Government of Gujarat & National Industrial Corridor

Development and Implementation Trust (NICDIT) (A Central Govt. Organazation).
2.  Significant Accounting Policies:
21 General

Accounting Policies not specifically referred to otherwise are consistent and in consonance
with generally accepted accounting principles and mandatory accounting standards issued

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
2.2 Basis of Accounting

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant presentation
requirements of the Revised Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 under the Historical

cost convention on the basis of going concern and accrual unless otherwise stated.
2.3 Fixed Assets:
Tangible Assets:

Tangible Assets are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes, trade discounts and rebates
and include amounts added on revaluation, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss, if any. The cost of Tangible Assets comprises its purchase price, borrowing cost
and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use, net charges on foreign exchange contracts and adjustments arising from

exchange rate variations attributable to the assets, if any.

Subsequent expenditures related to an item of Tangible Asset are added to its book value
only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously

assessed standard of performance.

Projects under which assets are not ready for their intended use are disclosed under

Capital Work-in-Progress.
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24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Intangible Fixed Assets:

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition net of recoverable taxes less accumulated
amortisation/depletion and impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use and net charges on foreign exchange contracts and
adjustments arising from exchange rate variations attributable to the intangible assets.

Depreciation and Amortisation:

Depreciation on the fixed assets is provided under Straight Line Method as per the rates
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 so as to charge off the cost of
assets to the Statement of Profit and Loss over their estimated useful life.

Taxation:

Provision for current tax is made and retained in the accounts on the basis of estimated
tax liability as per the applicable provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

Deffered Tax resulting from timing differences between book and tax profit will be accounted
for under the liability method, at the current rates of tax, to the extent that the timing
differences are expected to crystallize. However no such provision is made for the current
year.

Revenue Recognition:

Interest on Deposit held with GSFS is recognized when the right to receive the payment
is established.

Revenue Expenditure:
Operating expenses of the current year are charged to the revenue in the same year.
Employees Benefits:

At present the company does not have Employees of their own. The services of associated

Govt. depts. Employees are being Also, services of professionals hired on contractual basis are
taken.

Earning per Share:

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing net profit after tax for the year attributable
to equity share holders of the company by the weighted avarage number of equity share
issued during the year. Diluted earning per share is calculated by dividing net profit
attributable to equity share holders (after adjustment for dilluted earnings) by average
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number of weighted equity shares outstanding during the year.

2.10 Provisions:

211

A provision is recognized when there exists a present obligation as a result of past events
and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required

to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Cash and cash equivalent:

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of cash flow statement comprise cash at
bank and in hand and short term deposits with banks with an original maturity of three

months or less.

212 Expenditure in Foreign Currency: NIL

31

Earnings in foreign currency: NIL
Value of Raw Material Imported on CIF Bases: NIL
Foreign Travelling Expenditures: NIL

Related parties and transactions with them: The company has not entered into any related

party transactions during the year under audit.
Notes referred to in the Balance Sheet are as follows:

Share Capital: (Amount in Rs.) (Amount iRs.)

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018

(i)  Authorized Capital

20,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 Each 2,00,00,00,000 2,00,00,00,000

(i) Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Capital

5,43,90,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10 Each, 54,39,00,000 54,39,00,000
fully paid up
Total 54,39,00,000 54,39,00,000

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of

the

reporting period:

(i)

Particulars As At As at
31-03-2019 | 31-03-2018
Equity Shares

No. of Equity Shares at the beginning of reporting period 5,43,90,000 | 5,43,90,000
Add: No. of Equity Shares issued during the period
Less: No. of Equity Shares bought back during the period

No. of Equity Shares at the end of the reporting period 5,43,90,000 | 5,43,90,000
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at the Balance Sheet date:

List of the shareholders holding more than five percent of shares in the

company as

Names of the shareholder As at 31-03-2019
No. of Shares in %age
H'ble Governor of Gujarat 5,00,00,000 91.93%
National Industrial Corridor Development &
Implementation Trust (NICDIT) 43,90,000 8.07%
5,43,90,000 100.00%

Other disclosures related to Share Capital required as per Revised Schedule lll:

Particulars

As at 31-03-2019

immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date

(i) Aggregate number of Equity Shares allotted as fully paid up

by way of bonus shares during the period of Five years

(i) Aggregate number of Equity Shares bought back during the

period of Five years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date

3.2 Reserves and Surplus:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

As At 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

(i) Capital Reserve
Opening Balance
Add:  Appripriation during the period
Less: Written back during the period

Closing Balance

(iii) Surplus
Opening Balance
Add: Profit for the year as per Statement of Profit & Loss
Less: Interim Dividend and DOT Paid
Total Profit available for Appropriation
Closing Balance
Grand Total

12,02,42,666
2,02,38,817
7,07,07,000
6,97,74,483
6,97,74,483
6,97,74,483

9,58,76,877
2,43,65,789
12,02,42,666
12,02,42,666
12,02,42,666

3.3 Share Application Money Pending Allotment:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars

As At 31-03-2019

As at 31-03-2018

Share Application Money received pending allotment -
Airports Authority of India

77,27,00,000

Total

77,27,00,000
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3.4 Trade Payables:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018

Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise
Anushree Manpower Supply & Outsource 1,68,434 -
Others than Micro, Small & Medium Enterprise - 1,86,793
Gujarat Rural Industries & Marketing Corporation Ltd. — —
Total 1,86,793 2,60,556

3.5 Other Current Liabilities:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018
Advances From Customers - -
Current Matutiries of Long Term Borrowings - -
Income Tax Payable 1,64,27,472 2,04,72,388
TDS Payable - Income Tax 36,405 19,230
TDS Payable - GST 10,478 -
Security Deposits - Royal Travels 15,000 -

Total 1,64,89,355 2,04,91,618

3.6 Short Term Provisions:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018
Audit Fees Payable 11,800 11,800
Car Hire Charges Payable 79,389 29,412
Electricity Expenses Payable 33,890 38,952
Internet Charges Payable - 1,180
Manpower Supply Charges Payable 1,53,460 74,842
Professional Fees Payable 2,92,194 1,24,200
Postage & Courier Expenses Payable 1,740 -
Internal Audit Fees Payable 19,470 10,000
Salary Payable - Amit Chavda - (GIDB-GM) 1,14,578 93,381
Security Expenses Payable - 50,516
Tea Coffee Expenses Payable - 7,693
Water Expenses Payable 3,815 3,145

Total 7,10,336 4,45121
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3.7 Degreciation On Fixed Assets F.Y. 2018-19 (Amount in Rs.)
Gross Back Depreciation Net Back
Particulars Gross As on Additions/ |Deductions/ As at As at [For the Period |Deductions/ As at As at As at
01-04-2018 [Adjustments | Retirement| 31-03-2019 | 01-04-2018 18-19 | during the |31-03-2019| 31-03-2019( 31-03-2019
(Original Cost) during the | during the period
period 18-19 | period 18-19 18-19
PROPERTY, PLANT
& EQUIPMENTS
1 Tangible Assts:
Computer & Data
Processing Units 6,59,945 1,75,079 8,35,024 3,99,800 1,41,189 5,40,989 2,94,035 2,60,145
Office Equipments 9,23,400 11,489 9,34,889 1,07,749 1,75,643 2,83,392 6,51,497 8,15,651
Office Buildings 4,37,160 4,37,160 8,505 13,858 22,363 4,14,797 4,28,655
Electrical Installation
& Fittings 9,46,600 9,46,600 55,188 89,927 1,45,115 8,01,485 8,91,412
Furniture & Pictures 28,81,026 28,81,026 1,67,971 2,73,702 4,41,673 24,39,353| 27,13,055
a Leasehold Land — 1 1 1
S Sub-Total 58,48,131 1,86,569 60,34,700 7,39,213 6,94,319 14,33,532 46,01,168| 51,08,918
2 Intangible Assets
Software Licence-
Microsoft 46,395 46,395 44,075 2,320 46,395 — 2,320
Tally ERP9 63,720 63,720 553 20,180 20,733 42,987 63,167
Quick Heal Software 12,390 12,390 2,274 2,274 10,116 —
Sub-Total 1,10,115 12,390 1,22,505 44,628 24,774 69,402 53,103 65,487
3 Capital Work in
Progress
Flood Mitigation Study
report 95,25,973 95,25,973 95,25,973| 95,25,973
Inspection Fees 3,95,000 3,95,000 3,95,000 3,95,000
Project Report 4,39,61,528 4,39,61,528 4,39,61,528| 4,39,61,528
Soil Investigation report 23,46,000 23,46,000 23,46,000| 23,46,000
Sub-Total 5,62,28,501 5,62,28,501 5,62,28,501 | 5,62,28,501
4 Intangible Assests
under Development
Sub-Total —
Grand Total 6,21,86,747 1,98,959 -| 6,23,85,706 7,83,841 7,19,093 15,02,934| 6,08,82,772| 6,14,02,906
Previous Year 5,96,88,047 73,47,381 48,48,681| 6,21,86,747 2,76,650 5,07,191 7,83,841| 6,14,02,906| 5,94,11,397
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3.8 Trade Receivables:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018
Trade Receivables considerd good - Secured - -
India Infrastructure Publishing Ltd. - TDS Recoverable - 2,483
National Securities Depository Limited - Dematerialisation fees 12,875 -
Total 12,875 2,483

3.9 Cash and Cash Equivalents:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018
Balances with Banks 77,33,63,770 (1,77,539)
Cash on Hand 7,102 10,831
Liquid Deposit with GSFS 52,08,217 56,11,338
Total 77,85,79,089 54,44,630

3.10 Short Term Loand and Advances:

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at 31-03-2019 | As at 31-03-2018
(i) Other Short Term Loans and Advances

(@) Secured

(b) Unsecured, Considered Good
Advance Tax F.Y. 2016-17 - 1,03,11,000
Advance Tax F.Y. 2017-18 66,81,430 66,81,430
Advance Tax F.Y. 2018-19 51,00,000 -
FD with GSFS 51,25,82,432 56,34,71,004
Interest Receivable on FD with GSFS 3,17,57,029 2,97,87,003
Interest Receivable on LD with GSFS 23,312 -
Interest Receivable On sweep FD 1,51,026 -
Prepaid AMC Charges - A.C. 35,000 -
Prepaid AMC Charges - Printer 6,259 -
TDS Receivable F.Y. 2016-17 - 43,41,568
TDS Receivable F.Y. 2017-18 37,99,174 37,99,174
TDS Receivable F.Y. 2018-19 39,57,210 -
Other Investments : Deposits: 1,75,000 25,000

(c) Unsecured, Considered Doubtfull
Less: Provision for Doubtfull Loans — -
Total 56,42,67,872 61,84,16,179
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

Notes referred to in the Statement of Profit and Loss are as follows:

4.1 Other Income

(Amount in Rs.)

For the period | For the period

Particulars ended on ended on

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Interest Income - GSFS 3,95,12,101 3,79,91,713
Interest on Income Tax Refund 2,37,920 -
Interest Income - Sweep FD Balance 2,15,101 -
Other Indirect Income (Net of expenses directly attributable) — 66,000
Total 3,99,65,122 3,80,57,713

4.2 Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

(Amount in Rs.)

For the period | For the period

Particulars ended on ended on

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Depreciation on Fixed Assets 7,19,093 5,07,191
Preliminery & Pre - Operative exp. — -
Total 7,19,093 5,07,191

4.3 Administrative and Other Expenses

(Amount in Rs.)

For the period | For the period

Particulars ended on ended on

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Audit Fees (Statutory Audit Fees Plus Internal Audit Fees) 31,270 22,100
Advertisement Expenses 28,991 28,991
Aviation Expo Fees - -
Bank Charges 708 1,770
Car Hire Charges 8,37,135 4,00,747
Computer Maintenance & repairing expenses 32,951 1,205
Conference Expense - -
Postage & Courier Expenses 13,003 6,440
Domain Registration - -
Directors Sitting Fees - 10,000
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Dematerialisation Fees - (Joining Fees and ACF) 26,950 -
Electricity Expenses 4,58,433 2,49,009
Coffee Machine Installation Charges - 1,000
Internet Charges 2,167 15,250
Interest on late payment of TDS/DDT 1,46,064 503
Labour Charges - 1,000
Tally Licence Renewal Fees 12,744 -
Misc. Expenses - 6,361
Manpower Outsource Expenses 19,50,475 7,88,146
Meeting Expenses 10,021 3,928
Name plate & Banner Expenses - 13,710
News letter Subscription Charges 24,780 -
Professional Fees 28,18,695 16,67,230
Property Tax Expenses 35,356 -
Reimbursement of Misc. Exp. - 6,000

Report Purchase - -
Remuneration of Management Trainee - -
ROC Fees 17,700 5,000
Service Charges - -

Stamp Duty Exp. — -

Stationery & Printing Exp. 1,47,531 1,04,346
Subscription Charges — -
Site Visit Expenses 6,116 -
Security Service Expenses - 4,17,698
Sponsorship Expenses 25,00,000 4,05,000
Office Exp. 1,20,202 88,408
Travelling & Conveyance Exp. 2,45,632 1,31,682
Telephone Expenses 1,099 -
Tea-Coffee Expenses 82,974 67,853
Token Lease Rent 1 -
Uniform Expenses - 9,920
Water Expenses 43,955 19,455
Website Expenses - -
Xerox & Printing Expenses 20,858 23,877

Total 96,15,811 44,96,629
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4.4 Prior Period Items:

(Amount in Rs.)

For the period | For the period

Particulars ended on ended on

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

Professional Fees - 1,82,815
Car Hire Charges - 28,555
Property Tax and Interest 82,758 -
Total 82,758 2,11,370

4.5 Tax Expenses

(Amount in Rs.)

For the period | For the period

Particulars ended on ended on

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

(i) Income Tax expenses of Current Year 79,64,012 84,63,460
(i) Income Tax Provision W/off — (11,25,468)
Total 79,64,012 73,37,992

Payment to Auditors:

(Amount in Rs.)

For the period | For the period

Particulars ended on ended on

31-03-2019 31-03-2018

(i) As Auditor - -
Statutory Auditor: M/s. MANJ & Associates, F.Y. 17-18 10,800 10,800

(i) For Taxation Matters - -
(i) For Company Law Matters - -
(iv) For Others - -
Total 10,800 10,800
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Earnings Per Share has been computed as under: (Amount in Rs.)

For the period | For the period

Particulars ended on ended on
31-03-2019 31-03-2018
Profit/loss After Tax (PAT) 2,02,38,817 2,43,65,789

Add/(Less): Preference Dividend & Tax thereon - -
Add/(Less): Prior Period Adjustments (Net) - -
Profit/Loss For The Reporting Period 2,02,38,817 2,43,65,789
Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 5,43,90,000 5,43,90,000
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each for - -
Basic EPS 0.37 0.45
Diluted EPS 0.37 0.45

Contingent Liabities

There are no Contingent Liabilities on the company.

Figures are rounded off to the nearest rupee.

Figures of the previous year has been regrouped wherever required necessary.

Notes to Accounts 1 to 4 form an integral part of financial statements.

As per our report of even date For & On behalf of the Board of Directors of
For. M A N J & Associates Dholera International Airport Company Limited
Chartered Accountants . _Sd/' Direct bi Sd/;

(Firm Reg. No. 0131542W) anaging Uirector irector

sd/-

sd/-

Niteshkumar Delvadiya Company Secretary

Partner, Membership No. 131236
Place : Gandhinagar
Date : 25-06-2019
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

(CIN : U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Reg. Office: Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor, Karmayogi Bhawan, Gandhinagar-382010.

FORM NO. MGT-11
PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name of the Member:

Registered Address:

E-mail Id Folio No. / Client ID DP ID

| /We, being the member(s) of Dholera International Airport Co. Ltd. holding
shares of the above named company hereby appoint

Name :

Address:

Signature, or failing him

as my proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me and on my behalf at 07" Annual
General Meeting of members of the Company, to be held on 17" day of September,
2019 i.e. on Tuesday at 02:00 p.m. at the Committee Room of Industries and Mines
Department, 3rd Floor, Block No. 5, New Sachivalya, Gandhinagar-382010 and at

any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below :
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Resolution No.

Sr. | Resolution(S) Vote
No. For | Against
Ordinary Business:
1. | To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement
(Standalone) of the Company for the financial year ended of 31st
March, 2019 together with the reports of Board of Director's, Auditor
and C&AG thereon.
2. | Confirmation of Interim Dividend as final dividend for F.Y. 2018-19.
3. | To consider & fix remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the Company
for F.Y. 2019-20, appointed by C&AG.
Special Business:
4. | To regularize appointment of Shri Anuj Aggarwal (DIN: 06575625)
as a director of the company.
5. | To regularize appointment of Shri Anil Kumar Pathak (DIN: 08213061)
as a director of the company.
6. | To regularize appointment of Shri G. Chandramouli (DIN: 06624504)
as a director of the company.
7. | To regularize appointment of Smt. V. Vidya (DIN: 08366688) as a
director of the company.
Signed this .......... day of September 2019 Afiix
Revenue
Stamps

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:
(1)

2)

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.

The proxy need notbe a member of the company.
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

(CIN : U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Reg. Office: Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor, Karmayogi Bhawan, Gandhinagar-382010.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

(To be handed over at the entrance of the meeting hall)

7" Annual General Meeting on

Full name of the members attending

(In block capitals)

Ledger Folio No./Client ID No. No. of shares held:

Name of Proxy

(To be filled in, if the proxy attends instead of the member)

| hereby record my presence at the 07th Annual General Meeting of the DIACL, Address,
Committee room of Industries & Mines Department, 3rd Floor, Block No.5, New
Sachivalaya, Gandhinagar, Gujarat on 17th September, 2019.

(Member’s / Proxy’s Signature)

Note:

1) Members are requested to bring their copies of the Annual Report to the meeting,
since further copieswill not be available.

2) The Proxy, to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company
not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the commencement ofthe meeting. '

3) A Proxy need not be a member of the Company.

4) In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in
person or by Proxy, shall be accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint
holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in which the names stand in the
Register of Members.

5) The submission by a member of this form of proxy will not preclude such member
from attending in person and voting at the meeting.
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DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED

(CIN : U62100GJ2012SGC068709)
Reg. Office: Block No. 1, A-2 Wing, 3rd Floor, Karmayogi Bhawan, Gandhinagar-382010.

The Companies Act, 2013
Consent by Share Holders for Shorter Notice
[As per Section 101(1)]

To,

The Board of Directors

DHOLERA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMPANY LIMITED
37 Floor, A-2 Wing, Block No.1,

Karmayogi Bhavan,

Gandhinagar - 382010

PP Son of ...
RSNt Of o
HOIING o Equity Shares Shares of Rs.10 each in
the company in my capacity as .........cccccciiiiiiiiiiii hereby give consent,

pursuant to Section 101(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 to hold 7th Annual General Meeting
to be held on 17" day of September, 2019 at 02:00 p.m. at the Committee room of
Industries & Mines Department, 3rd Floor, Block No.5, New Sachivalaya, Gandhinagar, Gujarat

or any adjourned thereof at a Shorter Notice.

Signature: ...
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Industries and Mines Department
Pursuant to Section 394(2) of the Companies Act, 2013
Administrative Report on the working of Dholera International Airport Company
Limited for the F.Y. 2018-19

State Government has decided to develop an International Airport close to Dholera
Special Investment Region. The proposed Dholera Airport project would serve the
logistic requirement of Dholera SIR besides handling the spill over traffic of existing
Ahmedabad Airport in future. The proposed airport project is an early bird project
declared jointly by DIPP, DMICDC and GoG. Proposed airport location is ideally
placed to serve the other big cities of the State including Vadodara, Rajkot,
Bhavnagar, Nadiad, Kheda and Anand. It will also cater the demand of Sanand-
Viramgam area which is fast developing as an International Auto Hub. The proposed
airport will propel an Airport led economic growth in the entire region in line with
other Aerotropolis worldwide.

The brief description of the activities and work done during the year is as under:

1) AAI's stipulations for equity participation deliberated in various high level
meetings.

2) Flood mitigation plan was finalized in consultation with concerned departments
to make site flood free.

3) Final DPR prepared by TA has been submitted to AAL The DPR was also
approved by NITI AAYOG for equity participation by AAL Accordingly, AAI Board
in its 184t Board meeting has approved equity participation (51% share) in
Dholera airport project.

4) Govt. of Gujarat has accorded state support to the project as under;

a) Flood mitigation outside the airport boundary shall be the responsibility of the
State. I&M Department may have budgetary provision for the said expense.

b) The exemption in local property tax shall be provided.

c) All basic utilities shall be provided which are as under:

e  Water supply shall be provided up to the Airport premises.

o Pedicated HT stable power supply shall be provided up to the airport
premises.

e 4 - Lane Road connectivity from proposed Ahmedabad-Dholera
Expressway with 6 lane RoW shall be provided up to the airport.

o Drainage shall be provided up to the airport premises.

5) Revenue Dept. vide GR dated 17/12/2018 allotted 1,426.4677 Ha of
Government land bearing the survey No. 481 (Old Survey No. 101 P1) and 75
Ha. Land of Survey No. 171(0ld Survey No. 61P1) at Token lease Rent of ¥ 1/-

per annum for 30 Years further extendable for another 30 Years to DIACL.



6) Industries & Mines Dept. vide GR dated 04/01/2019 approved AAI equity

participation;

o The equity of the project shall be brought by AAI-GoG-NICDIT in the ratio
of 51:33:16.

« Initially, against GoG’s existing equity of Rs. 50 Cr in DIACL, AAI and
NICDIT shall bring matching contribution in the ratio of 51:33:16.

7) DIACL has taken possession of 1426.4677 Ha of Government land bearing the
survey No. 481 (Old Survey No. 101 P1) and 75 Ha. Land of Survey No. 171(0Old
Survey No. 61P1) with payment of ¥ 1/- token lease rent.

8) A kick start meeting was arranged among AAI, IMD and State’s concerned
Depts. Wherein, roles and responsibilities were assigned to all the stakeholders.

9) Share Subscription cum Share Holder Agreement (SSSHA) was signed and
executed among AAI-GoG-NICDIT-DIACL on 25/03/20169. Subsequently, AAI
infused share subscription money of ¥ 77,27,00,000/- towards 51% equity stake
in DIACL.

As on 31.03.2019 State Government has invested Rs. 50 Cr as Equity share capital and
National Industrial Corridor Development and Implementation Trust has invested Rs.
4.39 Cr as Equity share capital. Capital contribution of Government of Gujarat towards
Equity share capital has been deposited with GSFS.

Company has earned net profit of Rs. 202.39 Lakh during the F.Y. 2018-19, the same

has been kept as Reserve and surplus. Qeg/

M. K. Das
Principal Secretary
Industries and Mines Department
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